# STUDY OF PLASMA SHEATH EFFECTS OH ANTENNAS

8Y

GEORGE TYRAS

THE UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING ENGINEERING EXPERIMENT STATION TUCSON, ARIZONA

CONTRACT NO. AF 19(628)-3834 PROJECT 4642 TASK 464202

FINAL REPORT PERIOD COVERED: I JANUARY 1964 TO 31 MARCH 1967 APRIL 1967

# PREPARED FOR

AIR FORCE CAMBRIDGE RESEARCH LABORATORIES OFFICE OF AEROSPACE RESEARCH UNITED STATES AIR FORCE BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS





Rise Luci eta i

AD 6500

8

# STUDY OF PLASMA SHEATH EFFECTS ON ANTENNAS

#### by

George Tyras

The University of Arizona College of Engineering Engineering Experiment Station Tucson, Arizona

Contract No. AF19(628)-3834 Project No. 4642 Task No. 464202

FINAL REPORT Period Covered: 1 January 1964 - 31 March 1967 April 1967

## PREPARED FOR

Air Force Cambridge Research Laboratories Office of Aerospace Research United States Air Force Bedford, Massachusetts

Distribution of this document is unlimited. It may be released to the Clearinghouse, Department of Commerce, for sale to the general public.

Â

The second second

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

1

è

Abstract
Contributors
Introduction
1. Experimental Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas 2
1.1 Plasma Simulation Technique
1.2 Homogeneous, Uniform Plasma Layer
1.3 Inhomogeneous, Stratified Plasma Layer
2. Theoretical Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas 6
2.1 Slotted Circular Cylinder Clad with Inhomogeneous, Incompressible Plasma
2.2 Compressible, Inhomogeneous Plasma Layer 8
List of Scientific Reports
Papers Based on Scientific Reports
Papers Presented at Professional Meetings

# ABSTRACT

4

This is the Final Report under contract AF19(628)-3834 and it summarizes the work carried out during the period 1 January 1964 - 31 March 1967 in the Engineering Experiment Station, The University of Arizona. The work covers experimental and theoretical investigations into the problem of plasma sheath effects on antennas.

In the area of experimental investigations, the effects of plasma sheath inhomogeneities and nonuniformities on the radiation pattern and input impedance were assessed.

In the area of theoretical investigations, the effects of the structure curvature and the radiation patterns were assessed. The effect of plasma compressibility was also investigated.

i

## CONTRIBUTORS

The following individuals have been engaged in research under contract AF19(628)-3834 for various periods of time.

Faculty:

Associate Professor George Tyras. Principal Investigator

from 1 January 1964 - until 31 March 1967

## Graduate Students:

Advanced degrees in Electrical Engineering were or will be awarded by The University of Arizona to the following individuals whose theses or dissertations were based either entirely or in part on the research supported by the Contract:

Master of Science in Electrical	Engineering
Peter C. Bargeliotes	June 1964
Willard P. Webster	June 1966
Udo Karst	June 1967 (expected)
John R. Goltz	June 1967 (expected)
Doctor of Philosophy in Electric	cal Engineering
Robert R. Schell	February 1967
John M. Hamm	June 1968 (expected)
Eric W. Rahneberg	June 1969 (expected)

# INTRODUCTION

Our principal effort in this research project was centered on the following areas:

- 1. Development of a valid plasma sheath simulation technique.
- Experimental assessment of the effects of plasma sheath inhomogeneities and nonuniformities on the radiation pattern and input impedance of slot antennas.
- Theoretical assessment of the effects of curvature of a plasma covered structure on a slot radiation pattern.
- Effects produced by a plasma inhomogeneity and compressibility.

A brief description of each research topic is given in this final report. More comprehensive discussion of each topic can be found in the Scientific Reports and published papers listed in the final pages of this report.

#### 1. EXPERIMENTAL STUDY OF PLASMA SHEATH EFFECTS ON ANTENNAS

By necessity, most investigations into wave propagation through plasma sheath are of theoretical nature and deal with idealized geometries. In order to experimentally verify the theoretical work and to obtain results applicable to more realistic radiating systems and plasma sheath configurations, a laboratory simulation of a plasma sheath appeared desirable. Because of inherent limitations, the earlier attempts of plasma sheath simulation by means of artificial dielectrics were not successful in reproducing of theoretically known results satisfactorily.

#### 1.1 Plasma Simulation Technique

The difficulty that arises in the plasma simulation attempts stems from the fact that the real part of the plasma dielectric constant is less than unity, namely,  $\varepsilon_p/\varepsilon_a < 1$  where  $\varepsilon_p$  is the plasma dielectric constant and  $\varepsilon_a$  is the dielectric constant of free space. If, however,  $\varepsilon_p/\varepsilon_a = \varepsilon_{ps}/\varepsilon_{as} < 1$ where the subscripts "ps" and "as" denote plasma simulation and air simulation, respectively, it is seen that a simulated plasma environment depends on the ratio of the dielectric constants and not on their absolute values. Thus an artificial plasma environment can be created by covering a radiator or a scatterer under investigation with a medium having a dielectric constant less than that of the free space simulator.

A major requirement of the free space simulator is that it be in the liquid form to allow movement of measuring equipment through it. Furthermore, it should have a low loss tangent to minimize signal attenuation in the medium. The plasma sheath simulator can be any foamy material with  $\varepsilon_r \sim 1$  or simply air itself. Such a combination of dielectric materials will

simulate a plasma with  $0 < \epsilon_{2} < 1$ .

With such a simulation technique, the plasma parameters can be scaled and properly defined. It suffices to require that the two ratios  $c_1 = \mu \epsilon (1/\tau)^2$  and  $c_2 = \mu \sigma l^2/\tau$  where  $\tau$  is the characteristic period and 1 denotes the length, remain invariant. In the case considered  $\sigma \sim \sigma$ , hence only  $c_1$  needs to be satisfied which leads to

$$s_{s}^{c}s_{s}^{1}s_{s}^{2}s = s_{s}^{2}s_{s}^{2}, \qquad (1)$$

as the basic scaling equation.

The study of a table of dielectric materials at 10 GHz has revealed that the requirements of the free space simulating medium, i.e., low loss-tangent, noncorrosiveness, and stability are satisfactorily met by Aroclor 1232. The combination of air and Aroclor 1232 ( $\epsilon_r = 2.78$  and tanó = 0.008) will result in an  $n_s = 0.60$  corresponding to an electron density per cubic centimeter N = 7.83 x  $10^9 f_0^2$ , where  $f_0$  is the actual antenna operating frequency in GHz. With the simulating frequency  $f_s = 10$  GHz, air layer  $a_s = 2.9$  cm, slot mean radius  $b_s = 0.675$  cm, and the simulating tank containing Aroclor 1232, it follows that  $a/\lambda_G = 1.612$  and  $b/\lambda_0 = 0.375$ . As a consequence of the caling defined in (1) and since the plasma's index of refraction is a function of the wave frequency, the plasma environment that can be represented by this system will depend on the wave frequency chosen.

A semicylindrical tank of 22 in. inside radius and 24 in. high was designed and subsequently built to the design specifications. The wall material was plexiglass,  $\varepsilon_r = 2.59$ . The flat wall of the tank was made of one inch plexiglass plate and the curved wall of 0.25 inch plexiglass. The tank held 78 gal. of Aroclor 1232 oil,  $\varepsilon_r = 2.78$ . At the operating frequency of 10 GHz, the tank allowed a separation of the transmitting and the receiving

3

-Zular I - Alis

antennas by at least 28 wavelengths.

Since the relative dielectric constants of the tank material and the oil were so close in value, the interface between them had negligible effect on the wave propagation. The reflections from the curved plexiglassair interface were successfully reduced to a desirable level by placing high performance microwave absorber against the outside wall of the tank.

#### 1.2 Homogeneous, Uniform Plasma Layer

Using the simulation technique developed earlier, experiments were conducted with linear and annular slot antennas in the presence of a simulated uniform and homogeneous plasma sheath. The obtained experimental antenna radiation patterns agreed very well with theoretical predictions.

The input admittance of slot antennas was also measured. Reference to theoretical curves showed that the experimental curves were of the same general shape as those predicted. One notable discrepancy was seen in the curve for the normalized conductance. The theory predicted approximately a 5:1 ratio between the maximum and minimum values of G/Yo, while the experimental curves showed approximately a 1.1:1 ratio.

It was concluded that the most serious limitation of the technique was the fact that the method was not capable of simulating plasmas characterized by a negative dielectric constant. Moreover, the effective simulated dielectric constant of 0.36 achieved with Aroclor 1232-air combination could not be readily lowered because of the lack of suitable liquid dielectrics with  $\varepsilon_r > 2.8$ .

4

y aft

## 1.3 Inhomogeneous Stratified and Discontinuous Plasma Layers

The same plasma sheath simulation technique was also used to investigate the effects of various types of sheath discontinuities and inhomogeneities on a slot-antenna radiation pattern and input admittance. The results are applicable to re-entry environments.

In the case of semi-infinite and finite-extent homogeneous plasma sheaths, the radiation pattern and the impedance characteristic were investigated with regard to the geometry of the discontinuity and its proximity to the slot antenna. It was found that the radiation pattern is unaffected by the discontinuity as long as the ratio of the distance between the source and discontinuity to the sheath thickness was of the order of 20 or greater. When the sheath was made finite in extent, with a discontinuity on each side of the slot, the resulting pattern was seen to be a superposition of the effects of each discontinuity acting separately. Investigation of the input impedance of the slot showed essentially no variation with discontinuity separation for separation-to-thickness ratios of at least 4. For smaller separations, the impedance exhibited significant variations, strongly dependent on the geometry of the discontinuity. The effects produced by inhomogeneities were found to be similar to those of a homogeneous sheath with a certain equivalent dielectric constant.

For both the homogeneous and inhomogeneous sheaths, favorable comparisons with the available theory was obtained.

2. THECRETICAL STUDY OF PLASMA SHEATH EFFECTS ON ANTENNAS

The existing literature dealing with the assessment of the plasma sheath effects on antennas, although not scarce, is somewhat limited in scope. The analyses are limited to (a) planar geometries with uniform homogeneous plasma layer, (b) planar geometries with stratified plasma consisting of a series of homogeneous discrete layers, (c) circular cylindrical geometries with uniform, homogeneous layer applicable to large cylinders, (d) circular cylindrical geometries with inhomogeneous layer applicable to small cylinders only. In this research effort, answers were sought to problems of plasma covered antennas when some of the foregoing restrictions were relaxed. Specifically, the problem of a radiating slot on a circular cylinder clad with an inhomogeneous, continuously stratified plasma layer was solved for cylinders of arbitrarily large radii.

While problems dealing with incompressible homogeneous plasmas received considerable attention in the past, little has appeared on the problem of propagation through a plasma that is both compressible and inhomogeneous. Furthermore, one finds that frequent use is made of the boundary condition that the normal component of the electron velocity shall vanish at the free space-plasma interface. While the application of this boundary condition may yield useable answers, it is doubtful that such a rigid interface can be realized in situations relevant to mentry communication. In this research effort this questionable boundary condition was avoided by suitably choosing a profile which was continuous at the air-plasma interface. Consequently, since the electron density is zero at the interface, the vanishing of the normal component of the electron velocity is satisfied there automatically. Additional boundary conditions for the pressure and its

normal derivative, however, must be introduced to specify the problem uniquely.

2.1 Slotted Circular Cylinder Clad with Inhomogeneous, Incompressible Plasma

Even though the problem of an axial slot on a circular cylinder clad with inhomogeneous plasma was considered before, the resulting solution is not well suited for computations of field patterns of large cylinders.

In the present formulation the dielectric permittivity profile of the form  $:(:) = (:/b)^{2p}$   $a \le : \le b$ , was considered where 'a' and 'b' denote the radius of the conducting cylinder and the dielectric coating respectively and 'p' is an arbitrary parameter. The assumed profile is capable of representing an inhomogeneous, incompressible plasma when  $p \ge 0$  and a real dielectric when  $p \le 0$ . When  $p \ge 0$ , this model can be related to the plasma frequency in the form  $(w_0/w)^2 = 1 - (c/b)^{2p}$ . Thus, this representation admits the specification of the plasma frequency,  $w_0$ , between the limits of the operating frequency and zero.

The apparen advantage of the present formulation is that the wave equation can be solved in terms of Bessel functions and the solution can be extended to large cylinders.

Field expressions appropriate to small and large cylinders were found using well known methods of harmonic series representation, Watson transformation, and saddle point integration. In the case of large cylinders coated with incompressible plasma, the radiation patterns were plotted for various combinations of the cylinder radius, thickness of the coating, and the inhomogeneity gradient. The radiation patterns were found to be in good agreement with the qualitative arguments of geometrical optics.

An examination of the resulting radiation patterns revealed a resemblance to the radiation patterns of the corresponding planar geometry, homogeneous layer problem. The effect of the cylinder curvature was found to be a compression of the radiation pattern in the forward direction illuminated by the slot. As the radius of the cylinder is allowed to become large, the radiation patterns broadens and in the limit of an infinitely large radius it resembles the radiation pattern pertinent planar geometry, homogeneous layer configuration.

## 2.2 Compressible, Inhomogeneous Plasma Layer

The set of hydrodynamic equations together with Maxwell's equations describing a nonuniform plasma were applied to a two-dimensional problem where the magnetic field has a single component transverse to the direction of propagation and the profile is of the form exp(-Bx). These assumptions lead to a set of second order coupled electromagnetic and hydrodynamic differential equations which describes the region under consideration. Solutions to this coupled set were obtained and by the application of the method of Frobenius. Considerable simplification in the solutions resulted from the realization that the rms velocity of the electrons was always much smaller than the speed of light. The resulting set of approximate solutions were applied to the problem of obtaining reflection and transmission coefficients for the case of a plane wave incident obliquely from free space upon a layer of compressible inhomogeneous plasma.

١

## LIST OF SCIENTIFIC REPORTS

The following Scientific Reports were published by the Engineering Experiment Station, The University of Arizona, under the sponsorship of the Contract AF19(628)-3834:

Scientific Report No. 1:

"An Experimental Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas" by G. Tyras, P. C. Bargeliotes, J. M. Hamm and R. R. Schell, December 1964.

Scientific Report No. 2:

"Further Experimental Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas" by J. M. Hamm and G. Tyras, July 1965.

Scientific Report No. 3:

"Field of an Axially Slotted Circular Cylinder Clad with an Inhomogeneous Dielectric", by G. Tyras, February 1966.

Scientific Report No. 4:

"Plane Wave Propagation Through a Compressible Inhomogeneous Plasma", by E. Rahneberg and G. Tyras, March 1967.

· .,N,

### PAPERS BASED ON SCIENTIFIC REPORTS

- G. Tyras, P. C. Bargeliotes, J. M. Hamm, and R. R. Schell "An Experimental Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas", Radio Science, Journal of Research NBS/USNC-URSI, Vol. 69D, No. 6, June 1965, pp. 839-850.
- J. M. Hamm and G. Tyras "Further Experimental Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas", Radio Science, Vol. 1 (New Series), No. 11, November 1966, pp. 1263-1271.
- G. Tyras "Field of an Axially Slotted Circular Cylinder Clad with an Inhomogeneous Dielectric", IEEE Transactions on Antennas and Propagation, Vol. AP-15, No. 2, March 1967, pp. 222-226.

S. Carlo Back

# PAPERS PRESENTED AT PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS

- G. Tyras, P. C. Bargeliotes, J. M. Hamm, and R. R. Schell "An Experimental Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas", USNC-URSI Spring Meeting, Washington, D.C., April 20-24, 1965.
- J. M. Hamm and G. Tyras "Further Experimental Study of Plasma Sheath Effects on Antennas", USNC-URSI Fall Meeting, Hanover, New Hampshire, October 4-6, 1965.
- G. Tyras "Field of an Axially Slotted Circular Cylinder Clad with an Inhomogeneous Dielectric", USNC-URSI Spring Meeting, Washington, D.C., April 18-21, 1966.

DOCUMEN	T CONTROL DATA	- R&D		
(Security classification of title hedy of abstract and	d indexing ennotation must	be entered wh	en the overall report is classified	
ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (C pocate author) Engineering Experiment Station		20 RE	PORT SECUR TY CLASS FICATION	
The University of Arizona				
Tucson Arizona 85721		20 GR	QUP	
REPORT TITLE				
STUDY OF PLASMA SHEATH EFFECTS	ON ANTENNAS			
DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive day Final Scientific Report - Summa:	'**) ry for l January	, 1964 to	o 31 March 1967.	
AUTHOR(S) (Last name. lirst name initial)				
Tyras, George				
REPORT DATE April 1967	7. TOTAL NO 17	OF PAGES	76 NO OF REFS None	
CONTRACT OF GRANT NO	9. ORIGINATO	R'S REPORT N	IUMBER(S)	
VLT2(0701-2024				
5 PROJECT NO and Task No. 4642-02				
• DOD Element 02405304	95 OTHER REP Dia report)	95 OTHER REPORT NO(5) (Any other numbers that may be a this report)		
a DOD Subelement 674642	AFCRL-67	-0300		
AVAILABILITY LIMITATION NOTICES				
Distribution of this document is Clearinghouse, Department of Com	s unlimited. It mmerce, for sale	may be to the p	released to the general public.	
1 SUPPLENENTARY NOTES	12 SPONSORING	HILITARY A	CTIVITY	
	Hq. AFCF	L, (CRD)		
	United S	tates Air	r Force	
	L. G. Ha	nscom Fie	eld. Bedford. Eass. wir	
3 ABSTRACT	L. G. Ha	nscom Fie	eld, Bedford, Sass, 4173	
This is the Final Report the work carried out during the Engineering Experiment Station, experimental and theoretical inv effects on antennas.	L. G. Ha under Contract period 1 Januar The University vestigations int	nscom Fie AF19(628) y 1964-31 of Arizon o the pro	eld. Bedford, bass. kl73 )-3634 and it summarizes l Harch 1967 in the ha. The work covers oblem of plasma sheath	
This is the Final Report the work carried out during the Engineering Experiment Station, experimental and theoretical inv effects on antennas. In the area of experiment homogeneities and nonuniformitic were assessed.	L. G. Ha under Contract period 1 Januar The University vestigations int tal investigatio es on the radjat	nscom Fie AF19(628) y 1964-31 of Arizon o the pro ns, the e ion patte	eld. Bedford, Eass. (173 )-3634 and it summarizes L Harch 1967 in the na. The work covers oblem of plasma sheath effects of plasma sheath ern and input impedance	
This is the Final Report the work carried out during the Engineering Experiment Station, experimental and theoretical in effects on antennas. In the area of experiment homogeneities and nonuniformitie were assessed. In the area of theoretical curvature and the radiation pat compressibility was also invest.	L. G. Ha under Contract period 1 Januar The University vestigations int tal investigation es on the radiat al investigation terns were asses igated.	nscom Fie AF19(628) y 1964-31 of Arizor o the pro ns, the pro ns, the efficiency s, the efficiency sed. The	eld. Bedford, Eass. 417 -3634 and it summarizes Harch 1967 in the ha. The work covers oblem of plasma sheath effects of plasma sheath ern and input impedance ffects of the structure e effect of plasma	
This is the Final Report the work carried out during the Engineering Experiment Station, experimental and theoretical in effects on antennas. In the area of experiment homogeneities and nonuniformitic were assessed. In the area of theoretics curvature and the radiation pat compressibility was also invest	L. G. Ha under Contract period 1 Januar The University vestigations int tal investigation es on the radjat al investigation terns were asses igated.	nscom Fie AF19(62b) y 1964-31 of Arizor o the pro ns, the pro ion patte s, the effect sed. The	eld. Bedford, Eass. 473 -3634 and it summarizes Harch 1967 in the ha. The work covers oblem of plasma sheath effects of plasma sheath ern and input impedance ffects of the structure e effect of plasma	
This is the Final Report the work carried out during the Engineering Experiment Station, experimental and theoretical in effects on antennas. In the area of experiment homogeneities and nonuniformities were assessed. In the area of theoretics curvature and the radiation pat compressibility was also invest	L. G. Ha under Contract period 1 Januar The University vestigations int tal investigation es on the raciat al investigation terns were asses igated.	nscom Fie AF19(628) y 1964-31 of Arizor o the pro ns, the of ion patte s, the efficiency of the sed. The	eld. Bedford, Eass. 173 -3634 and it summarizes 1 Sarch 1967 in the ha. The work covers oblem of plasma sheath effects of plasma sheath ern and input impedance ffects of the structure e effect of plasma	
This is the Final Report the work carried out during the Engineering Experiment Station, experimental and theoretical in effects on antennas. In the area of experiment homogeneities and nonuniformitic were assessed. In the area of theoretics curvature and the radiation pat compressibility was also invest	L. G. Ha under Contract period 1 Januar The University vestigations int tal investigation es on the radjat al investigation terns were asses igated.	nscom Fie AF19(62b) y 1964-31 of Arizor o the pro ns, the e ion patte s, the effect sed. The	<u>-3634 and it summarizes</u> -3634 and it summarizes l Harch 1967 in the ha. The work covers oblem of plasma sheath effects of plasma sheath ern and input impedance ffects of the structure e effect of plasma	

·,•

26026

elen de la com

. Kirste

468-3

St. Bassie

Carlo Carlos Carlos

e:

Ι

Unclassifieu

TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES The total page count

number of pages containing information.

returnees cited in the report.

'he report was written.

be unique to this report.

ł

ild follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the

\* NUMBER OF REFERENCES. Enter the total number of

\*, CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER. If appropriate, enter \* applicable number of the contract or grant under which

st & & 8d PROJECT NUMBER. Enter the appropriate

" litary department identification, such as project number.

Ja ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S) Enter the offi-

15 OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S). If the report has been

assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator

10. AVAILABILITY LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limitations on further dissemination of the report, other than those

or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).

cist report number by which the document will be identified in t controlled by the originating activity. This number must

sulpr ject number, system numbers, task number, etc.

Security Classification				_				
14		LIN	LINK A		LINK B		LINK C	
KET WORDS		ROLE	W T	ROLE	ŵ T	ROLE	w T	
Plasma Simulation Technique Plasma Sheath Slot Antenna Radiation Pattern Inhomogeneous Dielectric Inhomogeneous Plasma								
	ICTIONS		<u> </u>			·		
<ul> <li>ORIGINATING ACTIVITY Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of Detense activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report.</li> <li>2a REPORT SECURTY CLASSIFICATION. Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accordance with appropriate security regulations.</li> <li>2t GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Directive 520.10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as authorized.</li> <li>REFORT TITLE. Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classification, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>imposed by security classification, using standard statements such as:</li> <li>(1) "Qualified requesters may obtain copies of this report from DDC."</li> <li>(2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."</li> <li>(3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users shall request through</li></ul>							
<ul> <li>immediately following the title.</li> <li>DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.</li> <li>AUTHOR(S) Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, furst name, middle initial. If military, show rank and branch of service. The name of the principal author is an absolute minimum requirement.</li> <li>KEPORT DATE. Enter the date of the report as day, month, year, if more than one date appears</li> </ul>	If the Services, cate this 11. SUP tory note 12. SPO the depai ing for t	report has Department fact and e PLEMENT NSORING ! trimental pro- the research	been fur to of Com nter the p ARY NOT MILITAR opect offer and dev	mished to merce, for price, if kr TES. Use Y ACTIVI ce or labo- relopment.	through the Offic sale to nown. for addi TY: En rato. y sp Include	ce of Tech the public tional exp ter the nar sonsoring te address.	nnical , indi- lana- ne of (pay-	

13 ABSTRACT: Enter an abstract giving a brief and factual summary of the document indicative of the report, even through it may also appear elsewhere in the body of the technical report. If additional space is required, a continuation sheet shall be attached 1

ţ

It is highly desirable that the abstract of classified reports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstract shall end with an indication of the military security classification of the information in the paragraph, represented as  $(TS) = (S) = (C_{11}) + (C_{22})$ 

There is no limitation on the length of the abstract However the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words

14 KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful terms or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no security classification is required. Identifiers such as equipment model designation, trade name, military project code name, geographic location, may be used as key words but will be followed by an indication of technical context. The assignment of links roles and weights is optional

-- -

Unclassified Security Classification